IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

SHANA BARNES,
PETITIONER,

v.

CASE NO.: SC06-062

STATE OF FLORIDA,
RESPONDENT,

FILED
MAY 12 11:15
CLERK SUPREME COURT

AMENDED BRIEF ON
JURISDICTION

ON REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT
COURT OF APPEALS, FIRST DISTRICT
STATE OF FLORIDA

SHANA BARNES #18067
HOMESTEAD CORRECTIONAL INST.
1900 SW 57th STREET, SUITE 300
FLORIDA CITY, FL 33034

STATEMENT OF CASE AND FACTS

A. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

THE PETITIONER, HEREIN REFERRED TO AS BARNES, WAS CHARGED BY INFORMATION WITH SECOND DEGREE MURDER. (F.I. 8-9). THIS CAUSE PROCEEDED TO TRIAL. A JURY FOUND BARNES GUILTY OF SECOND DEGREE MURDER (F.I. 204) BARNES FILED A MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL AND MOTION FOR JUDGMENT OF ACQUITTAL ARGUMENTS WERE MADE AS TO THE GRANTING OF BOTH MOTIONS. ALSO ARGUED WAS THE COURTS ERROR IN ALLOWING THE JURY TO HAVE A COPY OF PRIOR TESTIMONY, IMPROPER AND CONFUSING INSTRUCTIONS ABOUT THE USE OF JUSTIFIABLE FORCE AND DUTY TO RETREAT. THE CIRCUIT COURT DENIED THESE MOTIONS (SUPP. P. 1-12) THE COURT SENTENCED BARNES TO 27 YEARS IN PRISON WITH A MINIMUM MANDATORY TERM OF 25 YEARS. PURSUANT TO SECTION 775.087, FLORIDA STATUTES (F.I. 208-220), BARNES, TIMELY FILED HER NOTICE OF APPEAL (F.I. 266). THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT PER CURIAM AFFIRMANCE ON MARCH 8, 2006. BARNES FILED A TIMELY NOTICE TO INVOKER DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION ON APRIL 6, 2006. ON APRIL 10, 2006 A MOTION TO ENLARGE PAGE LIMITS OF JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF WAS FILED. BRIEF ON JURISDICTION FILED ON APRIL 13, 2006. APRIL 20, 2006 THIS COURT DENIED MOTION TO ENLARGE PAGE LIMITS OF JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF, ALSO BRIEF ON JURISDICTION WAS STRICKEN. AN AMENDED BRIEF ON JURISDICTION AS ORDERED IS FILED IN A TIMELY FASHION.

B. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

BEFORE TO TRIAL THE COURT CONSIDERED WHETHER THE STATE COULD INTRODUCE BARNES FORMER TRIAL TESTIMONY. THE CIRCUIT COURT DECIDED THE STATE COULD INTRODUCE TRANSCRIBED TESTIMONY (AS ADMISSIONS), VARIOUS OBJECTIONS WERE MADE INTER ALIA, REGARDING TESTIMONY; BECAUSE UNDUE EMPHASIS WOULD BE PLACED ON TRANSCRIPT. ALSO, INADMISSIBLE PORTIONS OF FORMER TESTIMONY. TRIAL COURT RULED UPON OBJECTIONS, THEN CAUSE PROCEEDED TO TRIAL PRODUCING THE FOLLOWING RELEVANT FACTS (F.I. 385-400)

YEA CHRISTOPHER, WAS THE FIRST STATE WITNESS. BARNES RENEWED HER PRIOR OBJECTION TO THIS TESTIMONY. (F.I. 70). CHRISTOPHER WAS A CLOSE FRIEND OF GREGORY BARNES FOR 4 YEARS BEFORE TO HIS DEATH (JULY 12, 2000), AND NEVER MET BARNES. ON THE NIGHT OF JULY 15, 2000, CHRISTOPHER MET GREGORY - THEY WATCHED A BOXING MATCH AND HAD DINNER. AROUND MIDNIGHT GREGORY TOOK CHRISTOPHER HOME. (F.I. 70-73) THE STATE INTRODUCED A TAPE OF BARNES'S 911 CALL. SHE STATES SHE SHOT HER INTOXICATED HUSBAND; THEY GOT INTO AN ARGUMENT. HE CHOKED HER IN THE BEDROOM AND THREW HER AROUND. SHE TRIED CALLING 911 THEN, BUT HE GRABBED THE PHONE. HE, ALSO TOLD BARNES, BITCH YOU BETTER LEAVE. GREGORY APPROACHED BARNES IN THEIR GARAGE WHILE SHE WAS IN THE CAB. HE SLAPPED HER IN THE FACE AND BUSTED HER LIP. (F.I. 80-85). KATHY GRIFFEL, OF JSO WENT TO THE SCENE AND PHOTOGRAPHED BARNES. THERE WAS SOME SLIGHT REDNESS, SLIGHT SCRATCH/ABRASION ON THE RIGHT SIDE OF HER NECK. ALSO, PHOTOGRAPHED WAS BARNES LIP AND BROKEN FINGERNAILS (F.I. 147-173). DWAYNE DANIELL, A PATROL OFFICER WITH JSO, SAW BARNES IN THE BACK OF A PATROL CAB. DANIELL, SAW BLOOD ON HER SHIRT COLLAR. ALSO, IDENTIFIED WAS A SMALL LACERATION ON HER UPPER LIP AND A SMALL SCRATCH ON HER NECK. BARNES, GAVE DANIELL A DETAILED ORAL ACCOUNT OF THE EVENTS, STARTING WITH GREGORY GOING TO A FRIEND'S HOUSE TO WATCH A FIGHT. HER UNSUCCESSFUL ATTEMPTS TO CONTACT HIM ON THE CELL PHONE; TO HER FINDING HIM IN THE BEDROOM OF THEIR HOUSE WOBBLING AND INTOXICATED. HE CHARGED AND PUSHED BARNES, A STRUGGLE BEGAN THERE AFTER HE CHOKED HER. SHE GRABBED A HANDGUN STORED IN A FANNY PACK LOCATED IN HALLWAYS. HE GRABBED FANNY PACK; SHE ATTEMPTS TO CALL 911 AT 2:00 AM. HE TOOK THE PHONE AND HUNG IT UP. ANOTHER STRUGGLE OCCURS THROWING BARNES TO THE FLOOR. SHE RETRIEVED ITEMS INCLUDING HANDGUN TO LEAVE THE HOUSE. EXITING HOUSE VIA GARAGE; HE CURSED AT HER AND TOLD HER TO LEAVE SHE WAS BACKING

OUT OF THE GARAGE AND STOPPED TO HEAR WHAT HE WAS SAYING. HE APPROACHED THE CAR REACHED INSIDE AND SLAPPED HER FACE. SHE FIRED A WARNING SHOT; THEN SHE HEARD A THUD ON CAR, CALLED 911 FOR ASSISTANCE. AFTER BARNES ORAL STATEMENT DANIEL REQUESTED A WRITTEN STATEMENT. WRITTEN STATEMENT WAS INTRODUCED BY DANIEL READING STATEMENT. BARNES OBJECTIVE IN HAVING THE GUN WAS NOT TO KILL HER HUSBAND; SHE WANTED TO SCARE HIM SO SHE COULD LEAVE AND PROTECT HERSELF. DANIEL DID SEE SIGNS OF STRUGGLE IN BEDROOM. BARNES NEVER SAID SHE WAS ANGRY AT GREGORY. GREGORY, THREW DOWN BARNES THREE SEPARATE TIMES. (E IV 184-1970), THE PARTIES DISCUSSED THE ISSUE OF PROTECTING THE JURY WITH A TRANSCRIPT OF BARNES PRIOR TRIAL TESTIMONY. SHE OBJECTED TO USE OF TRANSCRIPTS. THE COURT OVERRULED OBJECTIONS. AT PRE-TRIAL MOTION HEARING, THE TRIAL COURT SPECIFICALLY CONSIDERED WHETHER FORMER TRIAL TRANSCRIPT WAS ADMISSIBLE. TRIAL COURT CONSIDERED VARIOUS OBJECTIONS BY BARNES ON CERTAIN PARTS OF FORMER TESTIMONY. SHE ALSO OBJECTED TO QUESTION/ANSWERS IN THE FORMER TESTIMONY REGARDING DUTY TO RETREAT FROM HER OWN HOME. COURT AGREED SHE DID NOT HAVE TO LEAVE, BUT ACTIONS INDICATED SHE WAS LEAVING. COURT STATED JURY HAD TO DETERMINE REASONABLENESS OF ACTIONS; COURT OVERRULED OBJECTION. TRANSCRIPT OF FORMER TRIAL WAS READ TO THE JURORS VIA ROLE PLAY (ONE STATE ATTORNEY READING, WHILE THE OTHER ANSWERING QUESTIONS) (E II 385; E III 401-485; E VI 423-429). BARNES, OBJECTED TO QUESTION/ANSWER "SO WOULDN'T YOU AGREE COMING OUT OF THE MASTERBEDROOM, GOING OUT THIS FRONT DOOR YOU TAKE THE SIDEWALK AROUND THE FIRST CAR OR EYE TO THE OTHER CAR ANSWER- THE OTHER CAR WAS IN THE GARAGE. THIS WAS ERROR. COURT HAD PREVIOUSLY SUSTAINED THIS OBJECTION THE COURT ASKED DEFENSE COUNSEL IF HE WANTED A CURATIVE INSTRUCTION BARNES ARGUED THE CRITICAL ISSUE OF WHETHER SHE HAD A DUTY TO LEAVE THE HOUSE. SHE ASKED FOR THE FOLLOWING CURATIVE INSTRUCTION; BARNES WAS UNDER NO OBLIGATION TO LEAVE HER HOME. THE COURT REJECTED REQUEST FOR CURATIVE INSTRUCTION. COURT INSTRUCTED JURY THAT AN ERROR OCCURRED DURING THE READING OF TRANSCRIPT. PROPER QUESTION/ANSWER WAS RE-READ OMITTING THE QUESTION ABOUT THE FRONT DOOR/ SIDEWALK (E VI 483-490). BARNES MOVED FOR JUDGMENT OF ACQUITTAL. SHE ARGUED STATES CIRCUMSTANTIAL EVIDENCE DID NOT REBUT CLAIM OF SELF-DEFENSE; ALSO ARGUED INSUFFICIENCY OF EVIDENCE TO ESTABLISH PROOF OF DEPRAVED MIND FOR SECOND DEGREE MURDER. COURT DENIED MOTION ON BOTH GROUNDS. DEFENSE PRESENTED ITS CASE (E. VI 512-516), JAMES WILLIAMS, HOMICIDE INVESTIGATOR WITH USD SAU THE FOLLOWING AT SCENE: SIGNS OF STRUGGLE IN BEDROOM; BROKEN FINGERNAILS ON FLOOR; POSSIBLE BLOOD ON GARAGE DOOR. SHE COOPERATED AND WAS POLITE. SHE SPOKE OF PRIOR PUSHING, SHE WAS SCARED OF GREGORY. STATEMENTS OF PHYSICAL EVIDENCE GIVEN BY BARNES WERE CONSISTENT WHAT APPEARED TO BE BLOOD ON COLLAR OF HER SHIRT AND SHE APPEARED TO HAVE BEEN IN A FIGHT. THE FOLLOWING CHARACTER WITNESSES TESTIFIED TO HER REPUTATION AS A PEACEFUL PERSON; BEING VERY HONEST; WELL-LIKED AND RESPECTED. JAMES O'BRIEN (E. VI 543-546); PAULETTE HITCHCOCK (E VI 584-587); DAVID CLATER (E VII 627-628); PATTY SHEA (E VII 676-677); SUSAN SHACKEL (E VII 684-685); NELLY FLYNN, WITNESSED BARNES AND GREGORY INTERACT WITH EACH OTHER. SHE WAS PASSIVE AND CALM, GREGORY WOULD TALK ANGRILY TO HER (E VIII 713-716); ANDELL GIGGETTS, SAID SHE WAS OBSERVANT WITH HER HUSBAND. HE WAS MUSCULAR AND STRONG. SHE NEVER EXPRESSED ANY FEELINGS OF SPITE/HATE TOWARDS HER HUSBAND (E VIII 734-742). SHE AGAIN OBJECTED TO INTRODUCTION OF THE FORMER TRIAL TESTIMONY. COURT FOUND THAT FORMER TESTIMONY WAS A SWORN STATEMENT CONTAINING ADMISSIONS, COURT OVERRULED OBJECTION BECAUSE THE TRANSCRIPT WAS THE PUBLISHING OF A DOCUMENT LIKE A WRITTEN STATEMENT BY WITNESS. (E VII 642-645). ON JULY 17, 2000, MICHELLE SMITH-SCABAROTI FROM PUBLIC DEFENDERS OFFICE PHOTOGRAPHED THE FOLLOWING INJURIES A SCRATCH MARK TO HER WAIST, NECK AND DAMAGE TO HER NAILS, ALSO BRUISES ON ARM AND ELBOW (E VIII 723-725). TRIAL COURT CONDUCTED A JURY INSTRUCTION CONFERENCE REGARDING INSTRUCTION ON THE USE OF JUSTIFIABLE FORCE. AFTER JURY INSTRUCTION AND DELIBERATIONS, THE JURY FOUND BARNES GUILTY OF SECOND DEGREE MURDER.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

IN THIS CASE THERE ARE THREE ISSUES WHICH EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICT WITH THIS COURT AND OTHER DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS.

INSUFFICIENT EVIDENCE WAS PRESENTED TO SUPPORT SECOND DEGREE MURDER WERE PETITIONER ACTED WITH A DEPRAVED MIND WITH ILL WILL, SPITE, HATRED, MALICE OR EVIL INTENT. THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS SHOULD HAVE REVIEWED THE RECORD AND EVIDENCE IN ITS STANDARDS FOR DE NOVO REVIEW, IN ADDITION TO THE MOTION FOR JUDGMENT AND ACQUITTAL, BASED ON THE CIRCUMSTANTIAL EVIDENCE ESTABLISHED IN THIS COURT WITH PAGAN Y. STATE, 830 SO.2D 792 (FLA. 2002).

THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS FAILED TO ADHERE TO THE STANDARDS OF REVIEW FOR SUFFICIENCY OF EVIDENCE, WHERE THE EVIDENCE PROVIDED BY THE STATE WAS INSUFFICIENT TO WARRANT A CONVICTION AND DID NOT CONTRADICT PETITIONER'S THEORY OF SELF-DEFENSE AS HELD IN THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS WITH LIGHT Y. STATE, 841 SO.2D 623 (FLA. 2ND DCA 2003); TILLMAN Y. STATE, 842 SO.2D 922 (FLA. 2ND DCA 2003); AND WILLIAMS Y. STATE, 674 SO.2D 177 (FLA. 2ND DCA 1996).

THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS SHOULD HAVE VIEWED THE PETITIONER'S FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES SEPARATELY IN ITS DE NOVO REVIEW AS SET IN LEE Y. ST. JOHNS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, 776 SO.2D 1110 (FLA. 5TH DCA 2001). INSTEAD OF FROM THEIR PREVIOUS DECISION IN EXSLEY Y. STATE, 878 SO.2D 473 (FLA. 1ST DCA 2004)

SECOND ISSUE WAS TRIAL COURT'S ERRONEOUS DECISION IN ALLOWING THE JURY TO USE TRIAL TRANSCRIPTS IN ITS DELIBERATIONS, WHICH IS CONTRARY TO FLA. R. CRIM. P. 3.400(a), JANSON Y. STATE, 730 SO.2D 734 (FLA. 5TH DCA 1999) THERE ARE NUMEROUS CASES HELD BY THIS COURT AND OTHER DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS THAT ADDRESS DEPOSITIONS IN JURY DELIBERATIONS YOUNG Y. STATE, 645 SO.2D 926 (FLA. 1994) DEPOSITIONS ARE VERY SIMILAR TO TRANSCRIPTS, BOTH ARE TAKEN UNDER OATH AND ARE ORAL TESTIMONY, BY ALLOWING ANY TRANSCRIPTS IN THE JURY ROOM WITHOUT JUDGES REQUESTING THEM AFFECTS THE WHOLE TRIAL STRUCTURE AND PROCEEDINGS, IT IS ALSO A QUESTION OF GREAT PUBLIC IMPORTANCE,

THIRD ISSUE IS FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS DENYING PETITIONER'S CLAIM OF A RIGHT TO A FAIR TRIAL BECAUSE OF TWO INCONSISTENT CONTRADICTIONARY AND CONFUSING JURY INSTRUCTIONS ON THE DUTY TO RETREAT, BUTLER Y. STATE, 493 SO.2D 451 (FLA. 1986), MCKENZIE Y. STATE, 830 SO.2D 234 (FLA. 4TH DCA 2002) AND DOLLACK Y. STATE, 818 SO.2D 654 (FLA. 3RD DCA 2002). HOLDS REVERSIBLE ERROR OCCURS WHEN GIVING CONFUSING AND MISLEADING JURY INSTRUCTIONS, GIVING OF CONTRADICTIONARY JURY INSTRUCTIONS COMBINED WITH PROSECUTOR'S COMMENTS DURING CLOSING ARGUMENTS HAD A CUMULATIVE EFFECT CAUSING MORE CONFUSION THAN CLARITY AS TO WHAT PETITIONER'S DUTY WAS. THIS ERROR RESULTED IN A GUILTY VERDICT FOR PETITIONER.

THE PETITIONER, HERE IN SETS FORTH HER ARGUMENTS AND CONTENTS THAT THE DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH PREVIOUS DECISIONS OF THIS COURT AND OTHER DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS, PETITIONER HONORABLY REQUEST THIS COURT TO ACCEPT JURISDICTION AND SETTLE CONFLICT,

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT HAS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION TO REVIEW A DECISION OF A DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL THAT EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH A DECISION OF THE SUPREME COURT OR ANOTHER DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL ON THE SAME POINT OF LAW; ART V § 3(b)(3) FLA. CONST. (1980); FLA. R. APP. P. 9.030(q)(2)(A)(iv).

ARGUMENT . ISSUE I

THE DECISION OF THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL DENYING BARNES'S CLAIM FOR JUDGMENT OF ACQUITTAL AS TO SECOND DEGREE MURDER: THERE WAS NO EVIDENCE TO SUPPORT CONVICTION THAT BARNES ACTED OUT OF ILL WILL, SPITE, HATRED, MALICE/EVIL INTENT. THIS CASE EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISION OF THIS COURT ON THE SAME POINT OF LAW.

THERE ARE THREE (3) POINTS OF CONFLICT BEFORE THIS COURT WHICH ARE; 1) DISTRICT COURT SHOULD HAVE VIEWED THE RECORD AND EVIDENCE IN IT'S STANDARDS FOR DE NOVO REVIEW, IN ADDITION TO, THE ORDER ON A MOTION FOR JUDGMENT OF ACQUITTAL, BASED ON THE CIRCUMSTANTIAL EVIDENCE STANDARDS OF REVIEW. 1. THE STANDARDS OF REVIEW HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED BY THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT AND FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS AS FOLLOWS; FLONIS V. STATE, 913 30.02 524 (FLA. 5TH DCA 2005) AND MARLING V. STATE, 808 30.02 140 (FLA 2005) AND PAGAN V. STATE, 830 30.02 790 (FLA, 2005) AND SUTTON V. STATE, 884 30.02 332 (FLA, 5TH DCA 2003). 2. THE EVIDENCE IN THE BARNES CASE IS TOTALLY CIRCUMSTANTIAL; THERE WAS NO EVIDENCE THAT BARNES SHOT HER HUSBAND OUT OF ANGER/SEALOUSLY; NO WITNESSES TO CONTRADICT STATEMENT GIVEN BY BARNES; NO EVIDENCE TO REBUT BARNES'S HYPOTHESIS OF SELF-DEFENSE; STATEMENT GIVEN BY BARNES WAS CONSISTENT WITH THEORY OF SELF-DEFENSE; NO EVIDENCE BARNES ACTED WITH A DEPRAVED MIND AND NO EVIDENCE THAT BARNES KNEW HER HUSBAND/VICTIM WAS WITH ANOTHER WOMAN.

BLACK'S LAW DICTIONARY (8TH EDITION) DEFINES CIRCUMSTANTIAL EVIDENCE AS: EVIDENCE BASED ON INFERENCE AND NOT ON PERSONAL KNOWLEDGE/OBSERVATION, ALL EVIDENCE THAT IS NOT GIVEN BY EYEWITNESS TESTIMONY.

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