IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

SHANA BARNES,

Petitioner,

Case No. SC06-662

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

AMENDED JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

CHARLES J. CRIST, JR. ATTORNEY GENERAL

ROBERT R. WHEELER
TALLAHASSEE BUREAU CHIEF
CRIMINAL APPEALS
FLORIDA BAR NO. 0796409

THOMAS D. WINOKUR ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR NO. 906336

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PL-01, THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050 (850) 414-3300 (850) 922-6674 (FAX)

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

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

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The pertinent history and facts are set out in the decision of the lower tribunal, attached in slip opinion form [hereinafter referenced as "Slip Op." It also can be found at Barnes v. State, 922 So.2d 380 (Fla. 1st DCA 2006).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The appropriate focus upon the operative facts, as contained within the "four corners" of the DCA's decision, reveals no express and direct conflict with this Court or another DCA. Therefore, this Court must dismiss this case for lack of jurisdiction.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE I

IS THE FIRST DISTRICT'S OPINION BELOW WITH RESPECT TO SUFFICENCY OF EVIDENCE IN EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT WITH THE VARIOUS DECISIONS OF THIS COURT AND THE DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL? (Restated)

Petitioner contends that this Court has jurisdiction pursuant to Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), which effectuates Article V, § 3(b)(3), Fla. Const. The constitution permits this Court review a decision of a district court of appeal that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal on the same question of law.

The conflict between decisions "must be express and direct" and "must appear within the four corners of the majority decision." Reaves v. State, 485 So.2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986).

Accord Dept. of Health and Rehabilitative Services v. Nat'l Adoption Counseling Service, Inc., 498 So.2d 888, 889 (Fla. 1986)(rejecting "inherent" or "implied" conflict; dismissed petition). "Neither a dissenting opinion nor the record itself can be used to establish jurisdiction." Reaves at 830.

In addition, it is the "conflict of decisions, not conflict of opinions or reasons that supplies jurisdiction for review by certiorari." <u>Jenkins v. State</u>, 385 So.2d 1356, 1359 (Fla. 1980).

A district court of appeal opinion that is devoid of facts contains no holding that could conflict with another district court of appeal opinion:

[I]n those cases where the district court has not explicitly identified a conflicting decision, it is necessary for the district court to have included some facts in its decision so that the question of law addressed by the district court in its decision can be discerned by this Court.

Persaud v. State, 838 So.2d 529, 532 (Fla. 2003).

Applying these standards, the decision below is not in "express and direct" conflict with any of these cases.

Petitioner contends that the decision below with regard to the issue of the sufficiency of the evidence supporting her conviction conflicts with several decisions of this Court and other district courts, including Darling v. State, 808 So.2d 145 (Fla. 2002); Pagen v. State, 830 So.2d 792 (Fla. 2002); Floyd v. State, 913 So.2d 564, 571 (Fla. 2005); Sutton v. State, 834 So.2d 332, 334 (Fla. 5th DCA 2003); R.R.W. v. State, 915 So.2d 633, 634-635 (Fla. 2d DCA 2005); and Davis v. State, 761 So.2d 1154 (Fla. 2d DCA 2000). The rulings in these cases state nothing more than well-settled rules of law regarding review of evidentiary sufficiency claims, as well as the special standard when the State's evidence is wholly circumstantial. The decision below properly applies this well-settled law: "A review of the record demonstrates that the State presented the jury

with adequate evidence supporting its theory that appellant shot and killed her husband in a fit of anger over his behavior on the night in question." Slip op. at 2. Nothing in this result conflicts with the rules in the cases stated above. More importantly, the decision below did not state that it was considering and rejecting these decisions, so Petitioner cannot suggest that the decision below "expressly and directly conflicts" with these cases. Routine application of settled law does not warrant discretionary review.

Second, Petitioner argues that the State failed to present competent, substantial evidence that her acts were the product of ill will, hatred, spite, or an evil intent, and that such failure constitutes conflict with Light v. State, 841 So.2d 623 (Fla. 2d DCA 2003); Tillman v. State, 842 So.2d 922 (Fla. 2d DCA 2003); Santiago v. State, 874 So.2d 617 (Fla. 5th DCA 2004) Williams v. State, 674 So.2d 177 (Fla. 2d DCA 1996); McDaniel v. State, 620 So.2d 1308 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993); Marasa v. State, 394 So. 2d 544 (Fla. 5th DCA 1981). Again, the court below ruled, "A review of the record demonstrates that the State presented the jury with adequate evidence supporting its theory that appellant shot and killed her husband in a fit of anger over his behavior on the night in question." Thus, unlike the cited cases, the court found that there was evidence of ill will,

hatred, spite, or an evil intent. Nothing in such a ruling directly and expressly conflicts with the cited decisions. Petitioner's disagreement with the ruling below does not constitute direct and express conflict.

Third, Petitioner claims that the reliance of the court below on Rasley v. State, 878 So.2d 473 (Fla. 1st DCA 2004), conflicts with the decision of the Fifth District in Lee v. St. Johns County Commissioners, 776 So.2d 1110 (Fla. 5th DCA 2001), as the decision below conflicts with the definition of "de novo review" set forth in Lee. Other than arguing that the facts of Rasley differ from the facts in the case at bar, Petitioner does not explain how the decision below conflict with Lee. The court below did not rule that the judgment should be affirmed because it was controlled by Rasley; it cited Rasley for the proposition that "the issue of whether a defendant acted in self-defense is a question of fact for the jury." Lee in no way conflict with this rule of law.

Petitioner has failed to demonstrate that the district court's ruling with regard to sufficiency of evidence directly and expressly conflicted with any decisions of this Court or of

Petitioner also cites conflict with the federal Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals, <u>Heggy v. Heggy</u>, 944 F.2d 1537 (10th Cir. 1991). Such a conflict is beyond the scope of this Court's discretionary review. Article V, § 3(b)(3), Fla. Const.

another District Court of Appeal. Accordingly, this Court should decline to exercise jurisdiction.

ISSUE II

IS THE FIRST DISTRICT'S OPINION BELOW WITH RESPECT TO PERMITTING THE JURY TO TAKE AN EXHIBIT INTO THE JURY ROOM IN EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT WITH THE VARIOUS DECISIONS OF THIS COURT AND THE DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL? (Restated)

Petitioner claimed below that the trial court abused its discretion in admitting written excerpts of her prior trial testimony. The DCA ruled that the trial court properly admitted the exhibit into evidence because it contained "numerous admissions made by the Appellant," citing Delacruz v. State, 734 So.2d 1116, 1122 (Fla. 1st DCA 1999). Slip op. at 2. "The fact that the State published the exhibit to the jury does not turn the exhibit into 'testimony.'" Slip op. at 3. As such, the DCA ruled that the trial court did not abuse its discretion in allowing the jury to take the exhibit into the jury room. Id.

Petitioner claims that this decision is in direct and express conflict with <u>Janson v. State</u>, 730 So.2d 734 (Fla. 5th DCA 1999); <u>Young v. State</u>, 645 So.2d 965 (Fla. 1994); <u>Avila v. State</u>, 781 So.2d 413 (Fla. 4th DCA 2001); and <u>Schoeppl v. Okolowitz</u>, 133 So.2d 124 (Fla. 3d DCA 1961). None of these cases involve a transcript of admissions by the defendant, which had been admitted into evidence at trial, being sent back to the

jury room. <u>Janson</u> and <u>Avila</u>, for instance, involved a readback of trial testimony to the jury, not a written admission admitted into evidence. <u>Young</u> involved videotaped depositions that had not been admitted into evidence, and specifically distinguished videotaped confessions from the ruling. <u>Young</u> at 967. <u>Schoeppl</u> involved depositions which were not read into evidence. <u>Schoeppl</u> at 127.

The rules of law set forth in those cases were properly distinguished in the case at bar. An exhibit containing admissions is admissible; publishing the exhibit did not transform it into "testimony," and exhibits may be brought into the jury room. This conclusion does not conflict with any of the cases cited by Petitioner. Accordingly, this Court should decline to exercise jurisdiction.

ISSUE III

IS THE FIRST DISTRICT'S OPINION BELOW WITH RESPECT TO THE DUTY TO RETREAT INSTRUCTION IN EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT WITH THE VARIOUS DECISIONS OF THIS COURT AND THE DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL? (Restated)

Petitioner claimed below that by giving the standard "duty to retreat" instruction, as well as the specific instruction on the co-occupant non-duty to retreat from one's home, the trial court confused or misled the jury into thinking she had a duty to retreat from her home. The DCA ruled that the trial court

gave the general duty-to-retreat instruction "to frame the issue at the outset," and then explicitly instructed the jury that Petitioner was not required to retreat from her home, making clear that the garage (where the murder occurred) was part of the house. Slip op. at 4.

Petitioner claims that this decision is in direct and express conflict with Butler v. State, 493 So.2d 457 (Fla. 1986); Tinker v. State, 784 So.2d 1198 (Fla. 2d DCA 2001); McKenzie v. State, 830 So.2d 234 (Fla. 4th DCA 2002); and Kirkland-El v. State, 883 So.2d 383 (Fla. 4th DCA 2004). Petitioner cites Butler for nothing more than the rule that misleading and confusing instructions should not be given. regard to the other cases, Petitioner does nothing except list them in her brief and contend that the decision below conflicts with them. The State will only respond that none of those cases involve the trial court giving the general duty-to-retreat instruction "to frame the issue at the outset," and then explicitly instructing the jury that the defendant was not required to retreat from the home. Accordingly, Petitioner has failed to show that the decision below directly and expressly conflicts with any of these decisions. For these reasons, this Court should decline to exercise its jurisdiction in this case.

In this issue, as well as the prior issues, Petitioner simply takes cases citing general rules of law that she believes were not followed in the case below, and labels the disagreement direct and express conflict. This tactic suggests that the decision below directly and expressly conflicts with every case she cited in her brief below to support her argument. When the correct standards for determining direct and express conflict are applied, they reveal that this Court should decline to exercise jurisdiction.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing reason, the State respectfully requests this Honorable Court decline to exercise jurisdiction.